
 

 
You can view the agenda on the website  
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code 

 
 

 
  

To: 
 
The Chair and Members 
of the Procedures 
Committee 
 

 
County Hall 
Topsham Road 
Exeter 
Devon  
EX2 4QD 
 

 

Date:  15 November 2023 Contact:  Karen Strahan  01392 382264 
Email:  karen.strahan@devon.gov.uk 

 
PROCEDURES COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 23rd November, 2023 

 
A meeting of the Procedures Committee is to be held on the above date at 10.30 am. 
This will be a Hybrid Meeting (Microsoft Teams / Fortescue Room - Committee 
Suite) to consider the following matters. 
 
 Donna Manson 
 Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 
  
 PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE 

  
1 Apologies for absence  
 
 
2 Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2023, previously circulated. 

  
3 Items requiring urgent attention  
 
 Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as a 

matter of urgency. 
 
 
 
 
  

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy


 MATTERS FOR DECISION 
  

4 Local Member Protocol - Think Local Councillor (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services, (LDS/23/20) presenting 

a Local Member Protocol – ‘Think Local Councillor’ for adoption into the 
Constitution, attached.  
 

  Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions 
  

5 Scrutiny Procedure Rules - Part 4d (Pages 5 - 30) 
 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services, (LDS/23/21) proposing 

updates to Part 4d of the Constitution, Scrutiny Procedure Rules, attached.  
 

  Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions  
 
 PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 

PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE 
DISCLOSED 
 

   
NIL 

 
 
Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should 
therefore be treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any 
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the 
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal. 
 



MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS 
 
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors   
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD 
 
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor 
parking at County Hall and bus routes. 
 
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information 
see the Travel Devon webpages.  
 
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High 
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.  
 
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors 
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504 
beforehand.  
 
Membership of a Committee  
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page 
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.  
 
Committee Terms of Reference  
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on 
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee, 
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also 
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Access to Information 
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to 
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the 
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information 
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All 
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website  
 
Public Participation 
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public 
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of 
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public 
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting. 
 
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District 
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is 
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda 
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings 
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart 
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages  

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://www.traveldevon.info/cycle/
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver=4&info=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, 
as directed by the Chair.  Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and 
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed. 
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic 
Services Officer in attendance.  
 
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.  
 
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council  
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may 
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking 
place on that item. 
 
WiFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. 
 
Fire  
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available exit following the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green 
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use 
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the 
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park 
behind Bellair. 
 
First Aid 
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.  
 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council 
Chamber 
 
Alternative Formats 
If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in 
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other 
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on 
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to 
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD. 
Induction Loop available  

 

mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk


LDS/23/20 
Procedures Committee 
23 November 2023 
 

Local Member Protocol - Think Local Councillor 

Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  

 
1) Recommendation 
 
That Council be recommended to adopt the Local Member Protocol, attached at 
appendix A, to be included alongside the Council’s Protocol on Member / Officer 
Relations listed at 6h of the Constitution.  
  
 
2) Background / Introduction 
 
Following issues raised by a number of Elected Members, a request was made 
for the Governance Review Working Group to consider adopting a protocol 
focussing on Officer communication and consultation with Elected Members.  
 
Research was carried out examining material and guidance from other 
authorities for consideration to adopt or amend accordingly for Devon’s own 
protocol.  
 
From this research, a proposed protocol was prepared for the Governance 
Working Group.  
 
 
3) Consultations / Representations / Technical Data 
 
Views were sought from the Governance Working Group and benchmarking data 
from across other Authorities as well as specialist support from the Local 
Government Association (LGA).   
 
 
4) Draft Protocol 
 
The Governance Working Group considered this on the 2 October 2023, where 
the draft protocol, aimed at improving communications with Elected Members, 
was presented. 
 
Members were supportive of the guidance, and they subsequently endorsed the 
contents to be presented to the next Procedures Committee.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



5) Strategic Plan  
 
This proposal aligns to the Council’s Strategic Plan 2021 – 2025. The proposal 
supports the commitment of ensuring that the Council makes good decisions and 
is transparent and supports being a trusted and inclusive Council that hears the 
voices of communities and listens and learns. 
 
 
6) Financial and Legal Considerations 
 
There are no financial or legal considerations.  
 
 
7) Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate 

Change, Sustainability and Socio-economic) 
 
There are no environmental related issues. 
 
 
8) Equality Considerations 
 
There are no equality related issues. 
 
 
9) Risk Management Considerations  
 
No risks have been identified, although there is inherent risk in not consulting 
local Members in Council decisions making.  
 
 
10) Summary / Conclusions / Reasons for Recommendations  
 
The proposed Local Member Protocol ‘Think Local Councillor’ strengthens 
current processes and will need to be formally communicated to services in order 
that its purpose is put formally into practice.  
 
 
Name – Maria Price - Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
Cabinet Member - Councillor Saywell – Cabinet Member for Organisational 
Development, Workforce & Digital Transformation 
 
Electoral Divisions: All  
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers - NIL  
 
Contact for enquiries: Karen Strahan; 01392 382264, G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD 
 
 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



Appendix A 
 
Local Member Protocol 
 
Informing elected members – Think Local Councillor 
 
Councillors (“Members”) are elected representatives of their communities. They 
need to be kept informed of developments in their division, and in relation to their 
specific areas of interest or responsibility, at the earliest possible stage and 
throughout the process. Officers have a responsibility to tell Councillors what the 
Council is doing or plans to do in their area. Councillors also have detailed 
knowledge of their electoral division and are in a good position to assess the 
effectiveness and quality of service delivery at the local level and this can help 
officers do their jobs better. 
 
Keeping Councillors informed is vital for good communications, effective 
decision-making and service delivery. 
 
Councillors must be informed at the earliest stage about all significant 
Council events and issues affecting their electoral division and their 
constituents. As a ‘rule of thumb’, a significant development is anything that 
may cause a constituent, a local organisation, or the press to contact the 
Councillor. So, inform Members early but in a way which is appropriate to the 
circumstances. By phone? By email? Is a briefing or consultation meeting 
necessary?  
 
The Council and Officer Scheme of Delegation requires local Councillors to be 
consulted before formal decisions are taken which affect localities and also to be 
informed of the decision taken. 
 
Circumstances when it is essential for Officers to inform Members about local 
impacts include:  
 

• Changes to Council services 
• Buildings and Property 
• Council decisions (before and after the decision is taken) 
• Controversial issues (local campaigns / planning applications etc) 
• Consultations (Highways and Planning) 
• Events such as opening or closing of premises. 

 
Key rules: 
 

• Think about informing local Councillors at the earliest possible stage in 
the development of a proposal or as soon as an issue becomes 
apparent.  

• If the public are being informed, tell the Councillor too – ideally before. 
• Individual service areas are responsible for keeping Councillors 

informed. Communications and Democratic Services teams cannot do 
it for you. 

• Newly elected Councillors may not be aware of the history of local 
issues and may need additional briefings from the outset. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



• If in doubt consult with senior managers – but assume that it’s better to 
tell the Councillor than not. Democratic Services Managers can also 
advise.  

 
Most local Councillor notifications relate to site or area/locality specific proposals 
and usually only affect a single electoral division. However, some proposals have 
a wider impact and Officers will need to judge whether to inform other local 
Councillors. Examples of matters involving a wider area could be the closure of a 
secondary school, road closures and changes to library services. In the case of 
Exeter, you need to alert all Exeter Members. 
 
Please note that although general information is made available to Councillors in 
a variety to ways including electronically through the Council website and the 
fortnightly Members’ Bulletin, this does not guarantee that a Councillor will pick 
up information relating to their local area and is not a substitute for direct contact. 
 
Councillor roles  
 
Councillors have an important role to play in policy and decision-making and it is 
important that their views and the views of their local communities are heard and 
taken into account by decision-makers - whether that is Full Council, the Cabinet, 
Cabinet Members, Committees or Officers. 
 
Members are encouraged to inform relevant Officers of significant local issues 
which they become aware of and may have an impact on the Council and its 
services and to give feedback from their communities. 
 
Councillors have a responsibility to ensure that they are able to receive 
communications from officers by DCC email and by phone. 
 
Councillors are required by the Members’ Code of Conduct not to breach 
confidentiality. Therefore, an issue being confidential does not in itself prevent 
the sharing of it with the local Councillor, but the Councillor must be made aware 
that it is confidential. 
 
Councillors must ensure that when asked questions by the media requiring them 
to release information that they know to be or suspect may be confidential, they 
should have regard to the requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct, make 
no comment and refer the reporter to an officer in the Communications team.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
 

LDS/23/21 
Procedures Committee 
23 November 2023 
 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules – Part 4d 

Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services  

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration 
and determination by the Committee before taking effect.  
 
1) Recommendation 
 
That Council be recommended to adopt the proposed minor amendments to 
Part 4(d) – Scrutiny Procedure Rules, as annotated as Appendix A. 
  
 
2) Background / Introduction 
 
Following the proposed work programme of the Governance Review Working 
Group, a review of the Scrutiny function commenced in early September. This 
review is ongoing but has, to date, focussed on the previous reviews undertaken 
by the Council on the Scrutiny function including the Francis Review (2013), 
Health Scrutiny Review (2017), Scrutiny Symposium (2018), Outcomes from 
Scrutiny Statutory Guidance (2019), Scrutiny Action Plan (2020) and the 2021 
Children’s Scrutiny Review and resultant action plan.  
 
It was noted early in the review that not many Constitutional changes would be 
required as part of the review. 
 
In early October, the Governance Working Group revisited the analysis 
undertaken in 2019 following the publication of Scrutiny guidance, updating the 
summary of the main findings and suggestions for effective Scrutiny from the 
statutory guidance. It further agreed it would consider the scrutiny and 
governance lessons that could be surfaced from failing authorities, which it did 
on the 16th of October. 
 
Engagement with and from the public and the matter of communications and 
promotion were considered at the meeting on 30th October and the final action 
plan for Scrutiny working practice would be considered by the Governance 
Working Group on 27 November 2023.  
 
 
3) Consultations / Representations / Technical Data 
 
Views were sought from the Governance Working Group and benchmarking 
data from across other Authorities as well as specialist support from the Local 
Government Association (LGA).  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 
4) Proposed Changes  
 
As highlighted earlier, the Scrutiny review is unlikely to result in many significant 
changes to the Constitution, but the Governance Working Group considered a 
small number of proposed changes at its meeting on 2 October 2023. 
 
These changes were intended to update current working practices and ensure 
alignment to other parts of the Constitution. 
 
The changes proposed were as follows, reflected in Appendix A. 
 
A rewording of section 10, which ensured that the ability of Members of the 
Committee to submit agenda items under Standing Order 23, reflected the 
Member led process of Scrutiny in aligning such matters to its agreed work 
programme. 
 
The changes also reflected the updated terminology of spotlight reviews, 
standing overview groups and masterclasses. 
 
The proposed changes also removed the reference to the Joint Budget Scrutiny 
which was removed from Council processes several years ago.  
 
Scrutiny also routinely undertakes site visits which was in contradiction to the 
current guidance, so again this had been updated. 
 
 
5) Strategic Plan  
 
This proposal aligns to the Council’s Strategic Plan 2021 – 2025. The proposal 
supports the commitment of ensuring that the Council makes good decisions 
and is transparent and supports being a trusted and inclusive Council that hears 
the voices of communities and listens and learns. 
 
 
6) Financial and Legal Considerations 
 
There are no financial or legal considerations.  
 
 
7) Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate 

Change, Sustainability and Socio-economic) 
 
There are no environmental related issues. 
 
 
8) Equality Considerations 
 
There are no equality related issues. 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



 
 

9) Risk Management Considerations  
 
No risks have been identified, although there is inherent risk in not consulting 
local Members in Council decisions making.  
 
 
10) Summary / Conclusions / Reasons for Recommendations  
 
The proposed amendments seek to update current processes, removing 
references to outdated practice and ensuring alignment with other areas of the 
Constitution.  
 
 
Name 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services – Maria Price  
 
Cabinet Member  
Councillor Saywell – Cabinet Member for Organisational Development, 
Workforce & Digital Transformation 
 
Electoral Divisions:  
All  
 
Local Government Act 1972: List of background papers  
NIL  
 
Contact for enquiries: Karen Strahan; 01392 382264, G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
 

Appendix A 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
 
 

1.0 NUMBER OF AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

1.1 At its Annual Meeting, the County Council will appoint one or more 
Scrutiny Committees and decide their membership and terms of 
reference. The current arrangements are set out in Part 3 of the 
Constitution. 

 

2.0 MEMBERSHIP OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

2.1 All councillors except the Chair of the Council and members of the 
Cabinet may be members of a Scrutiny Committee. However, no 
member may be involved in scrutinising a decision of another 
committee in which they have been directly involved. 

 

3.0 CO-OPTEES (Voting Scheme) 
 

3.1 A Scrutiny Committee is entitled to recommend to the Council 
(which shall appoint committees in accordance with Standing 
Order 21) the co-option of one or more persons as voting or non-
voting members of the Committee. 

 

4.0 OTHER REPRESENTATIVES 
  

4.1 The Children’s Scrutiny Committee (or any successor committee 
dealing with education matters) shall include in its membership the 
following voting representatives: 

 
a) 1 Church of England diocesan representative; and 
b) 2 parent governor representatives representing primary 

and secondary and special schools in the county. 
 
 who shall vote only on matters relating to the Council's functions as a 

Local Education Authority and not on other matters considered by the 
committee although they may remain in the meeting and speak to 
those other items. 

 
4.2 The Health & Adult Care Committee (or successor committee) 

shall include in its membership 1 voting representative of City, 
Borough and District Councils in the administrative County of 
Devon, to collate and represent the views of the District Councils. 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



 
 

5.0 MEETINGS OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

5.1 There shall be at least 5 ordinary meetings of each Scrutiny 
Committee in each year in accordance with the Council's Calendar 
of Meetings. In addition, extraordinary meetings may be called 
from time to time as and when appropriate by the Chair or by the 
Chief Executive if either considers it necessary or appropriate. 

 

6.0 QUORUM 
 

6.1 The quorum for a Scrutiny Committee shall be as set out for 
committees in the Council Procedure Rules (Standing Order 26) in 
this Part of the Constitution. 

 

7.0 CHAIR 
 

7.1 The Chair and Vice-Chair of any Scrutiny Committee will be 
appointed by the Council at the Annual Meeting (see also Annex, 
paragraph 2) 

 

8.0 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

8.1 A Scrutiny Committee will be responsible for setting its own work 
programme taking into account the wishes of all members of that 
Committee in line with these procedure rules (see also paragraph 
9 below and Annex, paragraph 3) 

 
9.0 AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Any member of a Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to give 
notice to the Chief Executive that they wish an item relevant to the 
remit of the committee to be included on the agenda for the next 
available meeting of the committee. On receipt of such a request 
the Chief Executive will ensure that it is included on the agenda for 
that meeting. 
 

9.1 In line with Standing Order 23 any Member of a Scrutiny 
Committee shall be entitled to give notice to the Chief Executive 
that they wish an item relevant to the remit of the committee to be 
included on the agenda for the next available meeting of the 
committee. On receipt of such a request the Chief Executive will 
ensure that it is included on the agenda for that meeting and the 
Member can explain to the Committee why the issue is important 
and then the Committee can determine whether the matter is 
added to its work programme. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
 

9.2 Any member of the Council who is not a member of a Scrutiny 
Committee may give written notice to the Chief Executive that they 
wish an item on any local government matter and relevant to the 
functions of that Committee to be included on the agenda of that 
Committee and such an item will be included on the agenda of the 
next meeting of that Committee. 

 
9.3 A Scrutiny Committee will also respond, as soon as practicable, to 

any petition referred to it by the Cabinet under the Council’s 
Petitions Scheme (Part 4 of the Constitution) or where any such 
petition contains the required number of signatures, a Scrutiny 
Committee shall require a relevant senior council officer (i.e. a 
Chief Officer, as defined in Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution, 
Chief Officer Employment Procedure Rules) to attend and give 
evidence to it to explain progress or to explain the advice 
previously given to councillors to assist in their decision making. A 
Scrutiny Committee shall then report its findings and any 
recommendations to the Cabinet. 

 
9.4 A Scrutiny Committee will also respond, as soon as practicable, to 

requests from the Council and/or the Cabinet to review particular 
areas of Council activity. Where it does so, the Scrutiny Committee 
shall report its findings and any recommendations to the Council 
and/or the Cabinet. 

 

10.0 POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT  
 

10.1 The role of a Scrutiny Committee in relation to the development of 
the Council’s budget and policy framework is set out in detail in the 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 

 
10.2 In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other 

matters not forming part of its policy and budget framework, a 
Scrutiny Committee or sub-committee group may make proposals 
to the Cabinet for developments in so far as these relate to matters 
within its terms of reference.  

 
10.3 A Scrutiny Committee may investigate the available options for 

future direction in the development of the Council's policies and 
may appoint advisers and assessors to assist it in this process. It 
may ask witnesses to attend to address it on any matter under 
consideration and may pay any advisers, assessors and witnesses 
a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so. 

 
10.4 A Scrutiny Committee undertaking the Council’s functions in 

relation to the scrutiny of the health service and, in particular, 
where being formally consulted by the NHS or Health Providers 
will ensure that all relevant partners in the locality affected, 
including local authority partners, will have the opportunity to 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



 
 

contribute and that those views will be taken into account in 
making its recommendations to the NHS, Health Provider or 
Secretary of State for Health. 

 
10.5 A Scrutiny Committee may, in accordance with Standing Order 21, 

appoint sub-committees or ad hoc task groups, spotlight reviews 
to investigate specific topics on its behalf on a time-limited basis.  
It can also establish a standing overview group or masterclasses 
to increase understanding and awareness for Committee 
Members.  

 
10.6 With the agreement of the Procedures Committee, a Scrutiny 

Committee may hold an inquiry in the nature of a "select committee 
hearing" such as a task group or spotlight review into an issue 
which is not directly related to the exercise of the Council's 
functions, but which has a bearing upon its statutory responsibility 
for the promotion of the economic, social and environmental 
wellbeing of the area. 

 

11.0 REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

11.1 Once it has formed recommendations on any proposal or Cabinet 
decision, a Scrutiny Committee will prepare a formal report and 
submit it to the Chief Executive for consideration by the Cabinet or 
to the Council as appropriate. 

 
11.2 If a Scrutiny Committee cannot agree on one single final report to 

the Council or Cabinet as appropriate, then up to one minority 
report may be prepared and submitted for consideration by the 
Council or Cabinet alongside the majority report. 

 
11.3 The Council or the Cabinet shall consider the report of the Scrutiny 

Committee within two months of it being submitted to the Chief 
Executive. 

 

12.0 CONSIDERATION OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORTS BY THE 
CABINET 

 
12.1 The agenda for Cabinet meetings shall include an item entitled 

‘Issues arising from Scrutiny Committees’. The report of a 
Committee referred to the Cabinet shall be included at this point in 
the agenda (unless it will be considered in the context of the 
Cabinet’s deliberations on a substantive item elsewhere on the 
agenda) within two months of the Scrutiny Committee completing 
its report/recommendations. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 
 

12.1.1 When the Cabinet considers any such report from a 
Scrutiny Committee the record of the meeting at which that 
report is considered shall state: 

 
• what will be done about the recommendations and the 

time scale for those actions. 
• where the Cabinet rejects or decides not to act on a 

Scrutiny Committee’s recommendations, the reasons 
for so doing.  

12.2 Where a Scrutiny Committee prepares a report for consideration 
by the Cabinet in relation to a matter where the Council or Cabinet 
has delegated decision making power to a Cabinet Member, then 
the Scrutiny Committee will submit a copy of its report to that 
member for consideration and shall send a copy to the Chief 
Executive. The member of the Cabinet must consider the report 
and respond in writing to the Scrutiny Committee within 2 months 
of receiving it. A copy of his/her written response shall be sent to 
the Leader and to the Chief Executive. The member will also 
attend a subsequent meeting of the Scrutiny Committee to present 
his/her response. 

 
12.3 Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed or informal 

liaison between the Cabinet and the Scrutiny Committee as 
appropriate, depending on the particular matter under 
consideration. 

 

13.0 REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

13.1 Reports on the taking of key decisions. 
 

If a Scrutiny Committee thinks that a key decision has been taken which: 
 

a) was not included in the Forward Plan; or 
 
b) was not the subject of the general exception procedure under 

Paragraph 7.0 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules; or 
 
c) was not the subject of an agreement with a relevant Scrutiny 

Committee Chair, or the Chair/Vice-Chair of the Council under 
Paragraph 8.0 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules. 

 
the Committee may by resolution require the Cabinet to submit a report 
to the Council within such reasonable time as the Committee specifies. 
The power to require a report rests with the Committee but can also be 
exercised by the Monitoring Officer when so requested by the Chair (or, 
in his/her absence, the Vice-Chair) or any 3 members of that Committee. 

 
13.2 Cabinet’s report to Council 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 
 

The Cabinet will then prepare a report for submission to the next available 
meeting of the Council. However, if the next meeting of the Council is 
within 7 days of receipt of the resolution of the committee or a written 
notice of the Monitoring Officer, then the report may be submitted to the 
meeting after that. The report to Council will set out particulars of the 
decision, the individual or body making the decision, and if the Leader is 
of the opinion that it was not a key decision, the reasons for that opinion. 

 

14.0 SCRUTINY COMMITTEES’ ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS 
 

14.1 Rights to copies 
Subject to Rule 13.1 of the Access to Information Rules, and any statutory 
rights any Member of a Scrutiny Committee will be entitled to copies of 
any document which is in the possession or control of the Cabinet, and 
which contains material relating to 
 

a) any business to be transacted at a meeting of the Cabinet; or 
 

b) any decision taken by a Cabinet Member or Officer. 
 

Copies of such documents shall be made available within 10 clear days 
unless the Cabinet determine the Member concerned does not have the 
right to that information in which case the Cabinet must provide a written 
statement of reasons to the relevant Scrutiny Committee. 

 
14.2 Limit on rights 

 
A Scrutiny Committee will not be entitled to any part of a document which 
contains exempt or confidential information, unless the Monitoring Officer 
agrees that information is relevant to an action or decision they are 
scrutinising. 

 
 

15.0 ATTENDANCE OF CABINET MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
 

15.1 A Scrutiny Committee may scrutinise, and review decisions made 
or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any Council 
functions. As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the 
scrutiny role, it may require any member of the Cabinet and any 
senior officer to attend before it or a Task Group to explain in 
relation to matters within their remit: 

 
a) any particular decision or series of decisions. 

 
b) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; 

and/or 
 

c) their performance. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 
       and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required. 
 

15.2 Where any member or officer is required to attend a Scrutiny 
Committee under this provision, the Chair of that committee will 
inform the Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer shall inform 
the member or officer in writing giving at least 3 working days’ 
notice of the meeting at which they are required to attend. The 
notice will state the nature of the item on which they are required 
to attend to give account and whether any papers are required to 
be produced for the committee. Where the account to be given to 
the committee will require the production of a report, then the 
member or officer concerned will be given sufficient notice to allow 
for preparation of that documentation. 

 
15.3 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is 

unable to attend on the required date, then the Scrutiny Committee 
shall in consultation with the member or officer arrange an 
alternative date for attendance. 

 
[NB: A copy of the protocol for relationships and communications 
between the Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees is appended to these 
Rules for convenient reference]. 

 
16.0 ATTENDANCE BY OTHERS 
 

16.1 A Scrutiny Committee may invite people other than those people 
referred to in paragraph 15 above to address it, discuss issues of 
local concern and/or answer questions. It may for example wish to 
hear from residents, stakeholders and members and officers in 
other parts of the public sector and may invite such people to 
attend (see also 10.3 and 10.4 above). Additionally, and in relation 
only to the Joint Budget Scrutiny meeting normally held in January 
of each year, a member of the public who is a resident of the 
administrative area of the County of Devon may also make 
representations at that joint meeting as set out in Article 3 and in 
the Public Participation Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
16.2 A Scrutiny Committee undertaking the Council’s functions in 

relation to the scrutiny of the health service may require NHS 
Providers to attend before it or a Task Group to explain in relation 
to such matters. 

 
17.0 CALL-IN BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

17.1 A decision made by the Cabinet, a committee or a Cabinet 
Member, an officer exercising delegated powers, an area 
committee or under joint arrangements may be "called in" under 
the following procedure. Such a call-in of a Cabinet decision or the 
decision of an Cabinet Member will take precedence over a 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 
 

request by an individual Member for reconsideration by the 
Cabinet under Paragraph 11.0 of the Scheme of Delegation set 
out in Part 3 of this Constitution or Paragraph 10.0 of the Cabinet 
Procedure Rules. 

 
 

17.2 Call-in by Scrutiny should be used in exceptional circumstances 
and where Member(s) have evidence which suggests that the 
decision was not taken in accordance with the Council’s Principles 
of Decision Making set out at Article 13 or the Council's Policy and 
Budget Framework. 

 
17.3 Notice of all such decisions will be sent by email to all members of 

Scrutiny Committees within 2 working days of being made. The 
notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify 
that the decision which it records will come into force 5 working 
days after that date unless it is called in. 

 
17.4 Within that period, the Chair (or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair), 

any 3 members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee or any 5 
members of the Council whether or not they are members of the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee may call in such a decision by 
requesting the Chief Executive to convene a meeting of that 
Committee to consider it. The Chief Executive will convene such a 
meeting within 5 working days of that request and will inform the 
decision-taker of the call-in. 

 
17.5 Any Member wishing to call-in a decision is advised to first seek 

guidance from the Monitoring Officer on the veracity of their stated 
grounds for the call-in and demonstrate that they have been 
mindful of that advice when deciding whether or not to proceed 
with the call-in.  Any Member or Members calling-in any decision 
must specify the reasons for so doing which will be reported to 
Scrutiny Committee together with any advice received from the 
Monitoring Officer.  

 
17.6 If having considered the decision (the subject of the call-in), a 

Scrutiny Committee remains concerned, it may refer the decision 
to the Cabinet for reconsideration and will set out in writing the 
reasons for its concern and any proposed amendments.  If, having 
considered the decision, the Scrutiny Committee decide not to ask 
for it to be reconsidered or amended in any way, it shall be 
implemented with immediate effect.  

 
17.7 The Cabinet will reconsider the matter at its next ordinary meeting 

and may either amend or adopt the original decision, which shall 
be implemented with immediate effect. 

 
17.8 The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the 

decision being taken by the Cabinet is urgent in line with 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 
 

Paragraphs 7.0 and 8.0 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules. A 
decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the call-
in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public's 
interests. The record of the decision, and notice by which it is made 
public shall state whether in the opinion of the decision-making 
person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and therefore not 
subject to call-in. The Chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee (or 
in his absence the Vice-Chair), as appropriate must agree both 
that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances 
and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. Decisions taken as 
a matter of urgency must be reported with the reasons therefore 
to the next meeting of the Council. 

 
17.9 The operation of the provisions relating to call-in, and urgency shall 

be monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with 
proposals for review if necessary. 

 
 

18.0 THE PARTY WHIP 
 

18.1 The Council considers that whipping is incompatible in principle 
with scrutiny and should only occur in exceptional circumstances. 
For these purposes whipping means: 

 
“Any instruction given by or on behalf of a political group 
to any councillor who is a member of that group as to 
how that councillor shall speak or vote on any matter 
before the Council or any committee or sub-committee, 
or the application or threat to apply any sanction by the 
group in respect of that councillor should they speak or 
vote in any particular manner.” 

 
18.2 Where the whip has been imposed upon a matter, a member must 

declare the existence of the whip and the nature of it before the 
commencement of the committee’s deliberations on the matter. 
The declaration, and the detail of the whipping arrangements, shall 
be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 

 
19.0 PROCEDURE AT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

19.1 Scrutiny Committees shall consider the following business: 
 

(a) minutes of the last meeting; 
 

(b) declarations of interest (including whipping declarations); 
 

(c) any matter referred to the committee for a decision in 
relation to call-in of a decision; 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



 
 

(d) responses of the Cabinet to reports of that Scrutiny 
Committee; and 
 

(e) any petition referred to it or received under the Council’s 
Petitions Scheme (paragraph 9.3 above refers) 
 

(f) the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the 
meeting. 
 

19.2 Where a Scrutiny Committee conducts investigations (e.g. with a 
view to policy development), the committee may also ask people 
to attend to give evidence at committee meetings which are to be 
conducted in accordance with the following principles: 

 
(a) that the investigation be conducted fairly and all members of 

the committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of 
attendees and to contribute and speak; 

 
(b) that those assisting the committee by giving evidence be 

treated with respect and courtesy. 
 

19.3 Following any investigation or review the committee shall prepare 
a report, for submission to the Cabinet and/or Council as 
appropriate and shall make its report and findings public. 

 
19.4 The Council has also agreed a protocol governing relationships 

and communications between Scrutiny Committees and the 
Cabinet and operating procedures to supplement these Rules.  
This protocol does not form part of the Council’s Constitution but 
is reproduced in the Annex to these Rules for convenient 
reference.  

 

20.0 MATTERS WITHIN THE REMIT OF MORE THAN ONE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
20.1 Where a Scrutiny Committee conducts a review or scrutinises a 

matter which also falls (whether in whole or in part) within the remit 
of another Scrutiny Committee, then the committee conducting the 
review shall invite the Chair of the other committee (or his/her 
nominee) to attend its meetings when the matter is being reviewed. 

 

21.0 COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
 

21.1 Except where these rules expressly provide for different 
arrangements, Standing Orders will apply mutatis mutandis to 
meetings of Scrutiny Committees. 

 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

Corporate, Infrastructure and Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
(1) To review the implementation of the Council’s existing policy and budget 

framework and ensure effective scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and policies and consider the scope for new policies 
for the Council’s use and management of its resources and the discharge 
of its corporate and strategic services and governance arrangements and 
community safety activity, including emergency planning and the Council’s 
functions in the scrutiny of authorities responsible for crime and disorder 
strategies; 

 
(2) To review the implementation of existing policies and to consider the scope 

for new policies with regard to all aspects of the discharge of the Council’s 
‘place shaping and universal population services’ functions concerning the 
environment, economic activity and enterprise, integrated planning and 
transport and community services, including libraries, arts and cultural 
heritage of the County, an integrated youth service and post 16 education 
& skills;   

 
(3) To assess the effectiveness of decisions of the Cabinet in these areas of 

the Council’s statutory activity and relate overview and scrutiny to the 
achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities and objectives and of 
delivering best value in all its activities; 

 
(4) To make reports and recommendations as appropriate arising from this 

area of overview and scrutiny. 
                  

Children’s Scrutiny Committee 
 
(1) To review the implementation of existing policies and to consider the 

scope for new policies for all aspects of the discharge of the Council’s 
functions concerning the provision of personal services for children 
including social care, safeguarding and special needs services, schools 
and learning; 

 
(2) To assess the effectiveness of decisions of the Cabinet in these areas 

of the Council’s statutory activity; 
 
(3) To relate scrutiny to the achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities 

and objectives and of delivering best value in all its activities; 
 
(4) To make reports and recommendations as appropriate arising from this 

area of overview and scrutiny. 
 

Health & Adult Care Scrutiny Committee 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



 
 

(1) To review the implementation of existing policies and to consider the 
scope for new policies for all aspects of the discharge of the Council’s 
functions concerning the provision of personal services for adults 
including social care, safeguarding and special needs services and 
relating to the health and wellbeing of the people of Devon, including the 
activities of the Health & Wellbeing Board, and the development of 
commissioning strategies, strategic needs assessments and, 
generally,  to discharge its functions in the scrutiny of any matter relating 
to the planning, provision and operation of the health service in Devon;  

 
(2) To assess the effectiveness of decisions of the Cabinet in these areas 

of the Council’s statutory activity;  
 
(3) To relate scrutiny to the achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities 

and to its objectives of promoting sustainable development and of 
delivering best value in all its activities;  

 
(4) To make reports and recommendations as appropriate arising from this 

scrutiny to the County Council and to the Secretary of State for Health, 
in accordance with the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 
 

1. ANNEX 

A PROTOCOL FOR RELATIONSHIPS AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN 
THE CABINET AND THE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES  
 
This protocol supplements the Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained in the 
Council’s Constitution which affect the operation of the Committee process or 
impact upon individual members. This protocol does not form part of the 
Constitution but is reproduced here for convenient reference. 
 
1. Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny Committees will be appointed at the 

Annual Meeting of the Council.   
 
2. The positions of Chairs of Scrutiny Committees may be filled by members of 

minority groups and the positions of Vice Chairs of such Committees by 
members of the majority group, at the discretion of the Council.   

 
3. Co-ordination of the activities of Scrutiny Committees and their Task Groups 

shall be undertaken by the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny Committees, 
meeting jointly, to avoid duplication of effort and to ensure that the resources 
of the Council are best directed to support the work of Scrutiny Committees 
through, for example, investigating current or future policy development or  
scrutinising decisions of the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of the 
Council’s functions rather than simply reviewing or monitoring operational 
performance; including, for example, guidance on the number of Task 
Groups that may be supported over a given period of time.    

 
3.1. It should be also regarded as good practice, as part of the regular bi-

annual meetings between the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny 
Committees and the Leader of the Council, to review any such work 
programmes to ensure optimum resources may be made available or 
obviate any potential difficulty or conflict with the Council’s strategic 
objectives or policy development.   

 
4. Members of the Council may attend meetings of Scrutiny Committees to 

observe proceedings.  
 

4.1. To promote communication and understanding, all Scrutiny Committees 
will extend a standing invitation to Cabinet Members to attend meetings 
of those Committees most relevant to their responsibilities, to listen to 
the debate and contribute, if invited. 

 
4.2. Cabinet Members may only speak at Scrutiny Committee meetings at 

the invitation of the Committee.  However, if a Cabinet Member asks to 
speak, then the Committee is asked to be receptive to that request.  
(Where the request is made prior to the meeting, it should be referred to 
the Chair. Scrutiny Officers will act as the contact point for such 
requests), 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



 
 

4.3. Scrutiny Committees are encouraged regularly to call Cabinet 
Members to account. 

4.4. Scrutiny Committees are urged to question Cabinet Members directly 
on the reasons for and merits of member-level decisions. 

4.5. Scrutiny Officers will draw Cabinet Members’ attention to impending 
investigations that appear likely to affect their areas of responsibility.  

4.6. Where a Scrutiny Committee specifically wishes to question a Cabinet 
Member about some aspect of his/her remit: 

▪ the Scrutiny Officers should give as much notice as possible of the 
topic under consideration and the date on which it is to be considered; 

▪ the agenda will include an indicative time for the consideration of the 
item in question; and 

▪ that item will appear early on the agenda. 
 

4.6.1. The Leader of the Council will seek to ensure: 

▪ that the appropriate Cabinet Member(s) attends each relevant 
Scrutiny Committee meeting in the Council’s approved calendar; or 

▪ where the Cabinet Member is not able to attend, then another member 
of the Cabinet should attend in his/her stead. 

4.7. All other members may, in line with Standing Order 25 and the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules, speak to any item under consideration with the 
consent of the Scrutiny Committee. 

 
4.8. There may be occasions when a Scrutiny Committee will discuss an 

issue which is of purely local significance relating exclusively to the 
electoral division of an individual member. In those circumstances even 
if they are a Member of the Cabinet that Member shall be deemed to 
have been invited by the Scrutiny Committee and may attend and speak 
to that meeting in line with Standing Orders. 

 
5. A Scrutiny Committee may ask witnesses to attend to address them on any 

matter under consideration, as set out in detail in the Scrutiny Procedures 
Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
5.1. Scrutiny Committees’ questioning of officers should centre on 

professional, technical and managerial matters. 

5.2. Chief Officers and Heads of Service are asked to ensure that, as far as 
possible, an officer is present to represent each service when items 
affecting it feature on a Scrutiny Committee agenda. 

5.3. It is recognised that when Scrutiny Committees are exploring options for 
the development of new policy, professional and technical information 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 
 

from officers is likely to play a greater role than input from Cabinet 
Members. 

 
6. Information on a Scrutiny Committee’s work programme should be 

circulated to complement the Cabinet’s Forward Plan. 

7. A Scrutiny Committee will not normally may undertake site visits or public 
surveys or hold general public meetings unless it can be demonstrated that 
if such a course of action is essential to its investigations and would be a 
cost-effective method of obtaining that information.  While a Scrutiny 
Committee may appoint ad hoc working groups to look at specific topics 
relating to its terms of reference, the prior approval of the Procedures 
Committee will be required to the holding of any "Select Committee" style 
investigation in an area of or upon a subject upon which the Council does 
not have powers and duties. 

 
8. In relation to the preparation and consideration of Reports by a Scrutiny 

Committee Task Group the following shall apply: 
 

8.1. The Task Group takes evidence from contributors. As those 
contributions are written up, each contributor is offered a chance to 
comment on the accuracy of the record of his/her evidence. 

 
8.2. Once all the evidence is taken, the Scrutiny Officer drafts a report and 

recommendations to reflect the preliminary views of the Task Group.  A 
copy of this will be sent to the relevant Cabinet Member/Chief 
Officer/Head of Service and when the Task Group meets to consider and 
sign off the draft it is open to them to ask to attend and highlight any 
perceived inaccuracies or misunderstandings in the report.  The meeting 
at which the Task Group discusses the draft should normally be held in 
Part II so that any differences of opinion can be aired in private. 

 
8.3. The entitlement of a Member to reasonable access to all documents 

within the Council’s custody prevails over all other considerations and 
any commitment given to a witness who gives evidence at a hearing 
must contain the caveat that, once settled, the notes of the proceedings 
may be shown in confidence to any County Councillor who can satisfy 
the Director of Legal and Democratic Services of their “need to know”; 
accepting that in very exceptional circumstances it may be necessary to 
provide a member with an edited version of the notes. 

 
8.4. When the Task Group has settled the report and recommendations these 

go on the agenda for the next Scrutiny Committee meeting. 
 

8.5. When the Scrutiny Committee agenda is published, the Cabinet 
Member/Chief Officer or Head of Service concerned will receive a copy. 
If any of the Task Group’s final recommendations cause them concern, 
they can ask to speak at the Scrutiny Committee meeting (Cabinet 
Members have a standing invitation to attend). 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



 
 

8.6. The Scrutiny Committee will consider the Task Group’s 
recommendations and any comments from the Cabinet Member/Chief 
Officer, then decide whether to refer the recommendations to the Cabinet 
as they stand or with changes arising from the debate - or occasionally 
they may ask the Task Group to go back and do more work. 

 
8.7. The report and recommendations go to the next Cabinet. That allows 

sufficient time for the Cabinet Member/Chief Officer to give a written 
response to any of the recommendations felt to be unacceptable to them 
in the form set out.  The Cabinet can then debate the pros and cons and 
come to a view (or ask for more information, pending a debate at a later 
meeting). 

 
8.8. The long established principles outlined above in relation to the 

relationship and communications between the Cabinet and Scrutiny 
Committees shall apply equally as between Health & Wellbeing Boards 
and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
8.9. Moreover, it is acknowledged that while the Devon Health & Wellbeing 

Board is responsible for: 
• encouraging integrated working between commissioners of NHS, 

public health and social care services for the advancement of the 
health and wellbeing of the local population.  

• providing advice, assistance or other support in order to encourage 
partnership arrangements such as the developing of agreements to 
pool budgets or make lead commissioning arrangements under 
section 75 of the NHS Act;  

• preparing, reviewing and monitoring the Devon Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Devon;  

 
the purposes of the County Council’s scrutiny function is to: 
 
• assess the effectiveness of strategic decisions of the Health & 

Wellbeing Board and of the Cabinet; 
• examine the provision and delivery of health and wellbeing services 

(including health, social care and public health services) in order to 
review their quality and effectiveness,  

• consider, either of its own volition or arising from any external 
suggestion or request, the implementation of existing policies and 
consider the scope for new or amended policies for services affecting 
the health and wellbeing of people and communities in Devon; and  

• make reports and recommendations as appropriate arising from this 
scrutiny. 
 

A PROTOCOL FOR RELATIONSHIPS AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN 
THE HEALTH & WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AND 
HEALTHWATCH DEVON  
[NB: This protocol supplements the Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained in the 
Council’s Constitution which affect the operation of the Scrutiny process or 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 
 

impact upon individual members. This protocol does not form part of the 
Constitution but is reproduced here for convenient reference.] 
While Devon County Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee and 
Healthwatch Devon acknowledge the separate roles of the two organisations 
this document sets out a protocol intended to clarify how they will work together 
and to set out, transparently, the principles relating to the relationship between 
the County Councils Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee (or any successor 
body) and the Healthwatch Devon ensuring: -  

• improved health and social care throughout the administrative county of 
Devon is a common goal;  

• early and inclusive discussions to identify issues of mutual concern or 
interest are recognised; and  

• relationships are based on openness, honesty and accountability.  
The protocol will attempt to clarify and codify appropriate mechanisms for:  

• exchanging information and work programmes; 

• providing an opportunity for issues of mutual concern/interest to be 
recognised and dealt with co-cooperatively; 

• avoid any duplication of effort;  

• providing a shared understanding of the process of referrals and 
arrangements for dealing with such referrals; 

• a clear understanding of accountability between the two bodies. 
It is important to acknowledge that neither Healthwatch nor local authority 
scrutiny is a complaints service. It does not exist to directly inspect, or 
performance manage the NHS. The organisations that have responsibility for 
inspecting and performance management are NHS England, the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) and MONITOR.  While the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee or Healthwatch Devon may wish to receive regular reports from 
these and other relevant bodies such as the Health & Wellbeing Board  and 
individual NHS Trusts on performance that is solely for the purposes of obtaining 
an overview of the pressures on the service and quality of provision; it is not a 
complaints body.  

The County Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
In accordance with legislation, the County Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee can scrutinise any matter relating to planning, provision and 
operation of health services in the area. It can hold to account Local 
commissioners and providers of healthcare service including local NHS 
organisations, the Health and Wellbeing Board and the County Council itself (as 
a commissioner or provider of health and/or public health services)  for the 
quality, access and outcomes within the health services and ensure that these 
reflect the views and aspirations of local communities   
The Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee can hold these bodies to account 
by requesting information, requesting attendance at a scrutiny meeting, asking 
questions in public and making recommendations for improved services.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



 
 

A local authority scrutiny committee may also seek evidence from other 
interested parties such as Healthwatch Devon, its delivery partners, 
stakeholders, voluntary agencies, other local authorities and public bodies and, 
perhaps most importantly, from the public.  Any recommendations arising from 
scrutiny of provision or from any Review(s) initiated by the Health & Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee have to be considered and responded to by the relevant 
organisation/body/commissioner, in a timely way.   
NHS Bodies and commissioners, including Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) are also required to consult the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
on substantial developments or variations to local health services as an official 
consultee.  If the Scrutiny Committee has significant concerns with any 
proposals, it has the power to make a referral to the Secretary of State for Health 
(or MONITOR) (jointly with other local authorities, if appropriate).  All 
commissioners and providers of publicly funded healthcare and social care are 
covered by these powers, along with health and social care policies arising from 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.  
The formal terms of reference of the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
are: 

‘To review the implementation of existing policies and to consider the 
scope for new policies for all aspects of the discharge of the Council’s 
functions relating to the health and wellbeing of the people of Devon 
including the activities of the Health & Wellbeing Board, when 
established, and the development of commissioning strategies, 
strategic needs assessments and, generally, to discharge its functions 
in the scrutiny of  any matter relating to the planning, provision and 
operation of the health service in Devon, including making reports direct 
to the Secretary of State for Health, in accordance with the Local 
Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013’. 

Healthwatch Devon 
Healthwatch is the new independent consumer champion for both health and 
social care established in April 2013 to work alongside the national body – 
Healthwatch England – set up in 2012.  
Healthwatch Devon is the local body established, in line with Government’s 
plans, to give people a stronger voice and drive improvements in health and 
social care services, gathering knowledge, information and opinion, influencing 
policy and commissioning decisions, monitoring quality, and reporting concerns 
to inspectors and regulators. 
The national vision for local Healthwatch is that it will:  

• act as local consumer champion representing the collective voice of 
patients, service users, carers and the public;  

• support individuals to access information about services;  

• provide or signpost people to independent advocacy if they need help 
to complain about NHS services;  

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 
 

• influence commissioners, providers, regulators and Healthwatch 
England using their knowledge of what matters to local people.  

Healthwatch Devon will build on the work of the former Local Involvement 
Networks (LINks), to represent the views and experiences of the people and 
communities of the administrative County of Devon, endeavouring in particular 
to ensure that the voices of vulnerable people and hard to reach communities 
are heard. It will gather intelligence from people and use it to inform how 
decisions about services are made, including highlighting where there are 
problems and where things are working well, acting as a conduit for its 
acknowledged Delivery Partners (Devon Senior Voice; Living Options Devon; 
Citizens Advice Bureau; Devon Carers Voice; Be Involved Devon and Devon 
Link Up).  
Healthwatch Devon will therefore strive to provide a collective voice, not only for 
these communities of interest but for all people across both health and social 
care, influencing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and 
Wellbeing strategy – through its links with Scrutiny and through its seat on the 
Health and Wellbeing Board where local commissioning decisions will be 
guided. 
In particular it will seek to: 

• promote and support the involvement of local people in the 
commissioning, provision and scrutiny of local care services, 
including asking providers for information which they must make 
available to the public; 

• enable local people to monitor the standard of provision of local care 
services and whether and how local care services could and ought to 
be improved; 

• obtain the views of local people regarding their needs for, and 
experiences of, local care services and importantly to make these 
views known; 

• provide advice and information about access to local care services 
so choices can be made about local care services; 

• formulate views on the standard of provision and whether and how 
the local care services could and ought to be improved; and 

• provide Healthwatch England with the intelligence and insight it 
needs to enable it to perform effectively. 
 

Working Principles and Commitments   
Devon County Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee and 
Healthwatch Devon undertake to: 

• share each with the other information through actions, Agenda, 
Reports and Minutes  of their respective  bodies,  work programmes 
and Newsletters;  

• provide each with an early opportunity to comment on and contribute 
to the development of  the others work programme; 

• meet and exchange views on a regular basis to ensure a better 
understanding of each other’s roles and responsibilities and, in 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



 
 

particular, the role of the elected member in this process and to share 
knowledge and experience on specific topics, in the spirit of 
partnership working.  

[NB: Either party may, with prior approval, reproduce in whole or in part – 
or refer to - any Reports, Information, Data, Documents or Webpages that 
have been formally published by the other provided always that the 
reproduction of any such Report, Information, Data, Document or webpage 
is clearly acknowledged and credited in any publication, such consent not 
to be unreasonably withheld.]  
The application of the principles and commitments in this protocol will depend 
on both Healthwatch Officers and the Council’s officers (principally, but not 
exclusively, the Head of Scrutiny/Scrutiny Officers and/or Democratic Services 
Officers) maintaining effective communication at an early stage. 

In particular and in addition to the above, Healthwatch Devon will also:   
• provide the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee with a copy of 

any report that responds to a consultation exercise undertaken by 
Healthwatch Devon on behalf of local health or social care 
commissioners and providers or of its own volition; 

• provide the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee with a copy of its 
Annual Report and Reports arising from any completed reviews;  

• assist, where possible, the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
in its scrutiny of local health and social care issues;  

• alert the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - when invited to 
comment on its future work programme - of any planned work or work 
previously undertaken or relevant evidence compiled on any item 
listed therein, to inform that piece of work and/or avoid duplication of 
effort and resources; and 

• may escalate matters to the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
where there is evidence indicating serious and widespread patient 
and public concern, having given careful consideration to the making 
of any such referral as set out below. 

Is In particular and in addition to the above, Devon’s Health & Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee will also: 

• issue a standing invitation for a representative of  Healthwatch Devon 
to attend meetings of the  Committee and speak on any matter 
impacting upon the health and social care needs of the local 
population, at the discretion of the Chair; 

• provide Healthwatch Devon with a copy of its Annual Scrutiny Report;  
• alert Healthwatch - when invited to comment on its future work 

programme - of any planned work or work previously undertaken or 
relevant evidence compiled on any item listed therein, to inform that 
piece of work and/or avoid duplication of effort and resources; 

• provide Healthwatch Devon with a copy of any Task Group Report(s) 
relating to matters impacting upon the health and social care needs 
of the local population; 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



 
 

• invite Healthwatch to contribute to any on-going item of scrutiny work 
or Task Group by providing information and data, or giving evidence 
thereto either in writing or in person, as appropriate.  

Coordination of Activity 
While recognising that Healthwatch Devon and the County Council’s Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee are independent organisations - and are 
therefore free to develop and pursue their own work programmes – it is equally 
acknowledged that there can be mutual benefit in the co-ordination of activity 
between the two bodies to achieve the best health outcomes for all.  
This protocol recognises the complementary nature of and common functions of 
both bodies and the inherent ability therefore to be a critical friend to each other 
and to commissioners and providers in working toward the provision of high 
quality health and social care services for the people of Devon.  

Referrals by Healthwatch Devon to Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee   
The County Council acknowledges that under the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Health and Social Care Act 2012 a local 
Healthwatch may refer a matter relating to health and social care services to a 
scrutiny committee of a local authority. 
Healthwatch Devon undertake that any and all such referrals will only be made 
by the Healthwatch Devon Board and submitted in writing (electronic form being 
acceptable) to the County Council’s Head of Scrutiny and should normally be 
where there is significant evidence of patient and public concerns across the 
administrative area of Devon and where all attempts at seeking a local resolution 
with the appropriate health and social care commissioners and providers have 
been exhausted.  
The Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee will acknowledge receipt 
of any referral within 15 working days of receipt, indicating how it is planned to 
deal with that referral and when a final response will be forthcoming. 
The final response will necessarily depend on the subject matter but it may be:  

• if the referral is within the Scrutiny Committee’s terms of reference and 
the Committee is of the view that there would be value in scrutinising 
the issue identified, that it will then do so, either at: 

▪ the meeting at which the referral is first reported;  
▪ a future date, to be included in its Work Programme; or  
▪ through a Task Group, as identified in its Work 

Programme; 
• that it does not wish to scrutinise the issue (and, if that is the case, it 

will provide a full written explanation as to why it has not chosen so to 
do). 

 
If the matter is to be scrutinised, the Head of Scrutiny will formally advise the 
Chair of Healthwatch Devon of the outcome of that consideration in addition to 
the minutes of the meeting being made available in line with the general 
principles outlined above.  

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



 
 

Referrals by Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Scrutiny to 
Healthwatch Devon 
The Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee may wish to commission 
Healthwatch Devon to undertake specific pieces of research or collate evidence 
or undertake such other work relevant to scrutiny reviews in pursuit of its 
objectives.   
Where timescales do not allow for such requests to be made or endorsed at a 
meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee, a specification or scope 
for any piece of work or activity (including timescales) shall be prepared by the 
Head of Scrutiny in consultation with the Chair of the Committee. All requests 
will be submitted by the Head of Scrutiny to Healthwatch Devon in writing, 
utilising their Gateway Consultation portal*.  Healthwatch Devon will consider 
any request and respond within 15 working days of receipt indicating if it is able 
to carry out the work requested within the specified timetable or suggest an 
alternative means of providing any work/activity so requested. 
*[NB: This shall not preclude any informal contact between Healthwatch and the 
Council’s officers simply to ascertain, without prejudice, whether or not  
Healthwatch Devon would have the capacity to undertake any such research.] 
September 2013 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5




	Agenda
	A G E N D A
	Meetings Information and notes for visitors
	Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
	Membership of a Committee
	Committee Terms of Reference
	Access to Information
	Public Participation
	Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
	Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
	WiFI
	Fire
	First Aid
	Mobile Phones
	Alternative Formats
	Induction Loop available


	4 Local Member Protocol - Think Local Councillor
	1)	Recommendation
	2)	Background / Introduction
	3)	Consultations / Representations / Technical Data
	4)	Draft Protocol
	5)	Strategic Plan
	6)	Financial and Legal Considerations
	7)	Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change, Sustainability and Socio-economic)
	8)	Equality Considerations
	9)	Risk Management Considerations
	10)	Summary / Conclusions / Reasons for Recommendations

	5 Scrutiny Procedure Rules - Part 4d
	1)	Recommendation
	2)	Background / Introduction
	3)	Consultations / Representations / Technical Data
	4)	Proposed Changes
	5)	Strategic Plan
	6)	Financial and Legal Considerations
	7)	Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change, Sustainability and Socio-economic)
	8)	Equality Considerations
	9)	Risk Management Considerations
	10)	Summary / Conclusions / Reasons for Recommendations
	Appendix A
	Scrutiny Procedure Rules
	1.0	NUMBER OF AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
	2.0	MEMBERSHIP OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
	3.0	CO-OPTEES (Voting Scheme)
	4.0	OTHER REPRESENTATIVES
	5.0	MEETINGS OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
	6.0	QUORUM
	7.0	CHAIR
	8.0	WORK PROGRAMME
	10.0	POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT
	11.0	REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
	12.0	CONSIDERATION OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORTS BY THE CABINET
	13.0	REPORT TO COUNCIL
	14.0	SCRUTINY COMMITTEES’ ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS
	15.0	ATTENDANCE OF CABINET MEMBERS AND OFFICERS
	18.0	THE PARTY WHIP
	20.0	MATTERS WITHIN THE REMIT OF MORE THAN ONE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	21.0	COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

	TERMS OF REFERENCE OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
	Corporate, Infrastructure and Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee
	Children’s Scrutiny Committee
	Health & Adult Care Scrutiny Committee

	1.	ANNEX
	A PROTOCOL FOR RELATIONSHIPS AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN THE CABINET AND THE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

	A PROTOCOL FOR RELATIONSHIPS AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN THE HEALTH & WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AND HEALTHWATCH DEVON
	The County Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
	Healthwatch Devon
	Working Principles and Commitments
	In particular and in addition to the above, Healthwatch Devon will also:
	Is In particular and in addition to the above, Devon’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee will also:
	Coordination of Activity
	Referrals by Healthwatch Devon to Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
	Referrals by Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Scrutiny to Healthwatch Devon



